
27 October 2014 Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Short Regular Meeting 
Monday 27 October 2014, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
     

 
 
Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 

 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 

 
Councilmember Brenda Peace-Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Fearldine A. Simmons 
Councilmember George M. Daye 
 

City Officials 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 

 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 

 
In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance 
and operations of the City. 
 



27 October 2014 Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 

V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
a) 22 September 2014 Short Regular Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1] 
b) 22 September 2014 Work Session 
c) 25 September 2014 Special Called Meeting 
d) 14 October 2014 Special Called Meeting 
e) 20 October 2014 Recessed 10 October 2014 Special Called Meeting  
 

VII. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 
 

a) Recognition of Recreation and Parks Employee Mr. Eddie Hicks 
b) Resolution of Appreciation for City Manager, A. Ray Griffin, Jr.  

 
VIII. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-18-A, Amending Section 408 and 10-

33.3 of the City Code and Zoning Ordinance Section 405.3 Relative to Signs. (CAF 
14-30-A)  [See Notebook Tab 2] 

 
  ● Public Hearing 
  ● Ordinance 14-18-A 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address 
the Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of 
the meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, 
come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  
Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided below.3 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines for Agenda Items 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters of concern to 
them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to three minutes 
should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the public hearing 
comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, if in order, be 
scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are to be directed to 
the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the public comment 
section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



27 October 2014 Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 
X. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-77, Authorizing the Execution of 

Quitclaim Deeds for Several Properties Outside City Limits Recorded in Error as 
Jointly Owned City/County Properties. (CAF 14-106) [See Notebook Tab 3] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-77  
 
b) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 14-79, Authorizing the Execution of 

Change Order #5 for the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Project to Devere 
Construction Company, Inc., in the Amount of $22,825.16, and 2) Ordinance 14-49 
FY15 Budget Amendment #13, Amending the CIP Sewer Fund for Change Order #5 
to the Water Reclamation Facility Renovation Project. (CAF 14-109)  [See Notebook 
Tab 4] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-79 
  ● Ordinance 14-49 

 
c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-51, Authorizing a Contract with 

Locklear, Locklear & Jacobs, in Assisting the City with a Grant Application in 
Conjunction with an EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant. (CAF 14-89)  [See 
Notebook Tab 5] 

 
XI. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda have either been previously discussed by 
City Council during a previous meeting and/or are considered in the ordinary course of 
business by the City Council and will be enacted-on by one motion and a roll call vote in 
the form listed.  If discussion is desired by either the Council or the Audience, the item in 
question will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately after the 
revised consent agenda has been approved.  
 

 a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-80, Authorizing the Execution of a Right 
of Way Agreement with the North Carolina Department of Transportation in 
Conjunction with the I-85  Improvement Project I-0914BA.  (CAF 14-111)  [See 
Notebook Tab 6] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-111 
 
b) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-25, FY15 Budget Amendment #14, 

Establishing a Budget for the Lease Purchase Financing Agreement with SunTrust 
Equipment Finance & Leasing Corp. (CAF 14-73-A)  [See Notebook Tab 7] 

 
 ● Ordinance 14-25 



27 October 2014 Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-84, Removing City Manager, A. Ray 

Griffin, Jr., as Deputy City Clerk and as Signatory for the City of Henderson as Well 
as Relinquishing First Citizens Credit Card in Mr. Griffin’s Name. (CAF 14-115)  
[See Notebook Tab 8] 

 
  ● Resolution 14-115 
 
d) Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the 

Month of September 2014.  (CAF 14-110)  [See Notebook Tab 9] 
 

XII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Citizens may only speak on Non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to 
address the Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the 
beginning of the meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized 
by the Mayor, come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city 
resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided below.4 
 

XIII. REPORTS 
 
a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem  
b) City Manager  
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Meeting and Events Calendar [See Notebook Tab 10] 
ii. Monthly Reports 

 E-911 Report for September 2014 
 Fire Department Report for September 2014 

 
XIV. CLOSED SESSION 

 
a) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(3) regarding two Attorney/Client Privilege Matters 
 

XV. ADJOURNMENT   

                                                 
4 Citizen Comment Guidelines for Non-Agenda Items 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters 
of concern to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City 
Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to 
three minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the 
public hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, 
if in order, be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are 
to be directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; 
and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the 
public comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 22 September 2014 Short Regular Meeting  
Page 1 of 10 

City Council Minutes - DRAFT 
Short Regular Meeting  

22 September 2014 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Fearldine A. Simmons, and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None.  
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, Attorney Mike Satterwhite, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, Assistant 
City Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Kathy Brafford, Engineering Director Clark 
Thomas, Code Compliance Director Corey Williams and Henderson Water Reclamation Facility 
Director Tom Spain.  
 
(Clerk’s Note:  In the absence of City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr., Attorney Mike Satterwhite is 
serving tonight as Acting City Attorney) 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 22 September 2014 Short Regular Meeting and Work Session of the Henderson City 
Council was called to order by Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:01 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” 
Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Brenda Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in a prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   
 
Mayor O’Geary extended a warm welcome to all the Council members and guests present this 
evening, and encouraged citizens to attend any time. 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 22 September 2014 Short Regular Meeting  
Page 2 of 10 

ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  Council Member Peace-
Jenkins moved to accept the Agenda as presented.  Motion was seconded by Council Member 
Rainey and unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  Council Member 
Coffey moved the approval of the 4 September Special Called meeting and the 8 September 
2014 Regular Meeting minutes as presented. Motion seconded by Council Member Simmons, 
and unanimously approved.   
 
PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS 
 
The Mayor asked Mr. Chris Belk to come forward.  As Chair-Elect for the AWWA-WEA (NC 
Water Works Association-Water Environment Association, Mr. Belk presented a plaque to 
Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Mr. Tom Spain for his Exceptional Service and 
Dedication to Wastewater Schools Committee Developing Water Professionals of the Future.  
Mr. Spain has committed over 30 years to educating students in his vocation. A standing ovation 
was given. 
 
Mr. Spain thanked Mr. Belk and said volunteering as a teacher has allowed him to give back to 
the profession which in turn has also been beneficial to Mr. Spain. 
 
Mayor O’Geary said Mr. Spain has served the City well over his 34 years of service with both 
his knowledge and dedication to providing excellent service to the citizens of Henderson. City 
Manager Griffin described Mr. Spain as a master waste water treatment professional. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to 
Council on agenda matters.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Authorizing Change Order #2 for Additional Areas for Water Main and Services Replacement to 
the 2” Water Main and Services Replacement Project  Subject to Approval from DWSRF and 
Availability of Remaining Funds and FY15 Budget Amendment #12, Amending 2” Water 
Line Replacement Project. (Reference:  CAF 14-26-B; Resolution 14-19-B, Ordinance 14-47) 
 
Engineering Director Thomas explained that approximately 98% of the work associated with the 
original contract with NCDENR Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) is nearing 
completion and only about 65% of the funds have been expended.  Staff has received approval 
from the State to replace water mains on Zollicoffer Avenue, Cedarwood Drive, Crestwood 
Drive and Lynn Avenue and is now seeking Council’s approval.  Mr. Thomas said the contractor 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 22 September 2014 Short Regular Meeting  
Page 3 of 10 

has agreed to the same pricing as in the original contract except for a slight increase due to 
copper costs increasing.  If funds remain after this work is done, additional streets will be 
brought before Council for consideration. 
 
There was no discussion so Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Daeke to approve Resolution 14-19-B, Authorizing Change 
Order #2 for Additional Areas for Water Main and Services Replacement to the 2” Water Main and 
Services Replacement Project  Subject to Approval from DWSRF and Availability of Remaining 
Funds and Ordinance 14-47, FY15 Budget Amendment #12, Amending 2” Water Line 
Replacement Project.   Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey, and APPROVED by the 
following vote:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons and 
Daye. NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 4, p 303-B, 
Ordinance Book 9, p 179) 
 
Providing for the Disposition of Jointly Held Property by the City and County Identified as 
469 Merriman Street and Further Identified in Vance County Register of Deeds Book 
#1246, Page #598; Tax Parcel #0021-07 017.  (Reference:  CAF 14-105; Resolution 14-76) 
 
Code Compliance Director Williams explained this property has been abandoned and property 
foreclosed on by the County.  Sale of the property will put the property back on the tax books 
and will be brought up to code before it is approved for habitation. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked what the property value is currently and how it will affect the tax 
value.  Attorney Satterwhite said no matter what the property sells for, the value of the property 
does not change.  The property is currently assessed at $12,227.  Mr. Daeke said he understands 
the City/County cannot place restrictions on the type of residence but asked if anyone knew if the 
buyer planned to make it into rental property.  Mr. Williams said he did not know. 
 
There were no further questions.  Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Peace-Jenkins to approve Resolution 14-76, Providing for 
the Disposition of Jointly Held Property by the City and County Identified as 469 Merriman 
Street and Further Identified in Vance County Register of Deeds Book #1246, Page #598; Tax 
Parcel #0021-07 017.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey, and APPROVED by the 
following vote:  YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Simmons, Daye, and Kearney. 
NO:  Daeke.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 4, p 99) 
 
Amending the 2014 City Council Meeting Schedule.  (Reference:  CAF 14-103; Resolution 
14-74) 
 
City Manager Griffin explained normally the second meeting of the month of December is 
canceled due to the close proximity to the holiday.  He said if Council wishes, the December 22nd 
meeting can remain on the calendar or Council may cancel the meeting by approving this 
Resolution.   
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 22 September 2014 Short Regular Meeting  
Page 4 of 10 

There was no discussion so Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Inscoe to approve Resolution 14-74, Amending the 2014 
City Council Meeting Schedule.   Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey, and APPROVED 
by the following vote:  YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, Daye, Kearney 
and Coffey. NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 4, p 95) 
 
Authorizing FY14-15 Financing with SunTrust Equipment Finance & Leasing Corp., in 
the Amount of $149,711.45 for Five (5) Vehicles:  Three (3) 2014 Ford Interceptor Utility 
Vehicles – Two for the Fire Department and One for the Police Department; and Two (2) 
2014 V8 Dodge Chargers with Police Packages for the Police Department. (Reference:  CAF 
14-73; Resolution 14-47) 
 
Finance Director Brafford obtained quotes from two banking institutions for the above purchases 
which were approved in the FY14-15 budget.  The total interest from SunTrust Equipment 
Finance & Leasing Corp. is $5,927.45 which is $2,972.90 less than the quote from BB&T.  Ms. 
Brafford said allocations to the Fire and Police departments for these purchases falls well within 
the budgeted amounts. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the prices include extended warrantees.  Ms. Brafford 
responded yes.  Mr. Inscoe asked if the Drug Asset Forfeiture Fund monies have been depleted.  
City Manager Griffin said the Fund is well on its way to depletion and said this process begins 
the transition to ease away from using the forfeiture money.  Mr. Inscoe then asked for a report 
showing the balance of the Asset Forfeiture Account.  Mr. Griffin said he would be happy to 
provide this information. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked if only two institutions were contacted.  Ms. Brafford said she 
only contacted BB&T and SunTrust as the City, along with other municipalities, has had good 
experiences with both institutions.  Mr. Rainey then asked the last time the Fire Department 
received vehicles.  Ms. Brafford responded 3-4 years ago.  
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary now called for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Daeke to approved Resolution 14-47, Authorizing FY14-
15 Financing with SunTrust Equipment Finance & Leasing Corp., in the Amount of $149,711.45 
for Five (5) Vehicles:  Three (3) 2014 Ford Interceptor Utility Vehicles – Two for the Fire 
Department and One for the Police Department; and Two (2) 2014 V8 Dodge Chargers with 
Police Packages for the Police Department. Motion seconded by Council Member Daye, and 
APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, Daye, 
Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe. NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution 
Book 4, p 41) 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 22 September 2014 Short Regular Meeting  
Page 5 of 10 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
The City Clerk read the Consent Agenda, summarized as follows: 
 

Amending General Fund Revenues and the Capital Outlay >$5,000 Expenditure 
Line Item for the Information Systems Departmental Budget.  (Reference:  CAF 14-
101, Ordinance 14-45. BA #11)  This action re-appropriates funds in the current fiscal 
year to allow an upgrade to the City’s Information Systems servers. (See Ordinance Book 
9, p 175) 

 
Amending the Water Fund to Appropriate Fund Balance and Insurance Proceeds to Offset 
the Cost of Repairs to a Wrecked Service Truck in the Customer Service Department.  
(Reference:  CAF 14-107; Ordinance 14-46 Budget Amendment #10) Meter Reader R. 
Hawkins was involved in two accidents within weeks of each other near the end of FY14.  
Proceeds from the first accident ($2,000) were received in FY14; however, the proceeds 
from the second accident ($900) were not received until FY15.  This action appropriates 
the funds for both accidents to the proper line item to help offset the cost of the 
repairs.(See Ordinance Book 9, p 177) 

 
Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month of August 2014.  
(Reference: CAF 14-100)  Below are the tax releases and refunds which were found to be 
in order by the Finance Director for the month of August 2014.  
 

August 2014 Tax Releases
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property
Releases
Parker, Polly Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 19.34                    
Parker, Polly Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 277.79                  
Parker, Polly Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 21.24                    
Parker, Polly Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 21.24                    
Parker, Polly Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 21.24                    
Orr, Jack W Jr/Judy Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 46.69                    
Parker, Polly Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 26.05                    
Orr, Jack W Jr/Judy Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 176.38                  
Parker, Polly Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 26.97                    
Orr, Jack W Jr/Judy Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 176.38                  
Parker, Polly Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 26.97                    
Orr, Jack W Jr/Judy Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 176.38                  

Orr, Jack W Jr/Judy
City Demolition Fee Lost to 
Foreclosure 2011 3,734.64               

Parker, Polly Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 26.96                    



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 22 September 2014 Short Regular Meeting  
Page 6 of 10 

 
August 2014 Tax Release & Refunds Continued 

 
Orr, Jack W Jr/Judy Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 40.35                    

Orr, Jack W Jr/Judy
Solid Waste Fee Lost to 
Foreclosure 2012 250.00                  

Parker, Polly Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 26.96                    
Sneed, Elizabeth Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 (146.25)                
Hernandez, Marisol Personal Property Billed in Error 2013 36.86                    
Navarro, Roberto Personal Property Billed in Error 2013 36.86                    
Orr, Jack W Jr/Judy Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2013 42.76                    
Parker, Polly Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2013 28.58                    
Aiken, Kirby Glenn Reg. Veh. Billed in Error 2014 250.36                  
Allgood, Benjamin F Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 94.43                    
Ayscue, Christopher Ray Correct Value 2014 79.11                    
B B & T Personal Property Billed in Error 2014 641.38                  
B W & Company Properties, LLC Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 70.22                    
Beyond Fantasy Discoveries 2014 69.24                    
Butler, Anthony O Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 22.62                    
Cava, Ron/Shirley Correct Ownership 2014 (1,332.74)             
Cobbler Bench & Discount Shoes Personal Property Billed in Error 2014 50.31                    
Community Partners of Hope Charitable-LW/MD 2014 361.47                  
Davis, Amanda Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 30.98                    
Davis, Georgia S. Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 22.88                    
Davis, Queen Esther, Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 81.57                    
Dean Transportation, Inc. Personal Property Billed in Error 2014 76.63                    
Divine Habitation Discovery 2014 (136.74)                
Faison, Bobby Correct Ownership 2014 (265.50)                
Faucette Properties, LLC Remove Elderly Exemption 2014 (294.49)                
Fogg, Jean Mciver Correct Ownership 2014 110.50                  
Garden Walk Villas Correct Value 2014 551.72                  
Granville County Habit for Hum Charitable-LW/MD 2014 51.98                    
Hernandez, Sergio Personal Property Billed in Error 2014 41.06                    
Hill, George L Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 62.55                    
James, Raymond N Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 99.19                    
Jenkins, Sondra J & Others Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 32.24                    
Jettyme, LLC Personal Property Billed in Error 2014 155.92                  
Jones, Virginia H Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 177.07                  
Lewis, Fellow F Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 200.27                  
Leyland, Thomas R. Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 207.08                  
Manning, William Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 18.60                    
Marrow, Walter, Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 21.70                    
Martin, Joyce B Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 29.31                    
McDougal, Nezzie Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 32.24                    
Melvin, Thomas Clavon Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 30.50                    
Merritt, James S. Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 256.12                  
Moorefield, Janis I Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 26.62                     



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 22 September 2014 Short Regular Meeting  
Page 7 of 10 

 
August 2014 Tax Release & Refunds Continued 

 
Orr, Jack W Jr/Judy Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 42.76                    
Parker, Polly Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 28.58                    
Perez, Karina Ramirez Correct Ownership 2014 (37.20)                  
Ragland, Anna R Heirs Remove Elderly Exemption 2014 (155.00)                
Ramsey, Geraldine Correct Ownership 2014 37.20                    
Stevenson, Lawrence E Correct Ownership 2014 (431.93)                
Stevenson, Walter Maco Correct Ownership 2014 431.93                  
Stewardson, R. Ashley Correct Ownership 2014 1,332.74               
Toth, Albert A Correct Ownership 2014 (709.52)                
Variety Stores Correct Value 2014 41.74                    
Voegeli, Becky L Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 126.28                  
White, Mary S Correct Ownership 2014 709.52                  
Williamsboro Rentals Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 247.84                  

Total R&P Property Releases 8,685.73               

Real & Personal Property
Refunds
Owen, E. Gupton Roofing Correct Value 2011 96.51                    
Barnett, Charles Mason Correct Value 2012 506.34                  
Owen, E. Gupton Roofing Correct Value 2012 96.51                    
Owen, E. Gupton Roofing Correct Value 2013 102.28                  
Barnett, Charles Mason Correct Value 2014 1,951.83               
Barnett, Charles Mason Less Discoveries 2014 (1,566.37)             
Barnett, Charles Mason Correct Value 2014 385.41                  
Total R& P  Property Refunds 1,572.51               
Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Ref. 10,258.24$           

Vehicle Releases
Blackwell, Valerie Lavette Pro-Rate 2013 11.53                    
Greenway, Tracy Stuart Pro-Rate 2013 10.91                    
Harris, Tashan Jarrel Pro-Rate 2013 26.68                    
Total Vehicle Releases 49.12                    

Vehicle Refunds
Faulkner, Roy Hurst Pro-Rate 2013 3.06
Total Vehicle Refunds 3.06

Tot. Veh. Rel. & Ref. 52.18$                  
Total All Releases & Refunds 10,310.42$            

 
Mayor O’Geary asked if anyone wished to remove an item from the Consent Agenda. There 
were no requests.  Mayor O’Geary asked for a motion to approve the consent Agenda  
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 22 September 2014 Short Regular Meeting  
Page 8 of 10 

Council Member Kearney moved the approval of the Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Peace-
Jenkins, Daeke, Simmons, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, and Rainey.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  
None.  ABSENT: None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk McCrackin advised one citizen wished to address Council. 
 
 Mr. Leonard Thomas (Tom) Englehart, 225 White Oak Drive.  Mr. Englehart came 
before Council to express concern regarding the drainage in the White Oak area.  He  feels the 
drain is badly in need of maintenance and provided photographs for the Assistant City Manager.   
 
Mayor O’Geary thanked Mr. Englehart and asked the City Manager to look into this matter 
which Mr. Griffin said he would do and a report will be brought back to Council and Mr. 
Englehart. 
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem (No Report) 
 

b) City Manager   
 
Mr. Griffin and the Mayor met with Representative Baskerville and Mr. Jim Crawford, 
NCDOT Board Member, on Friday to discuss Council’s concerns regarding the I-85 
construction project.  Mr. Griffin said these gentlemen were surprised to learn of the 
DOT plans and expressed their support to help mitigate the situation. 
 
Mr. Griffin also shared the applicants for the Recreation and Parks Director position have 
been reduced to seven and interviews will begin shortly. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if the City has had any response from the County 
regarding the City’s request for the County to take over this department.  Mr. Griffin 
responded the County Manager indicated this request is being considered at what he 
called a snail’s pace and did not think a decision would be made in the near future. 

 
c) City Attorney 

 
Attorney Satterwhite shared City Attorney Zollicoffer broke his leg while on vacation 
and will be working from home during his final days as city attorney. 
 

d) City Clerk   
i. Reminder of Kerr-Tar COG Annual Banquet Sept 25 

ii. Reminder of Recycling Day Sept. 27 
iii. Reminder of Crime Stoppers Banquet October 2 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 22 September 2014 Short Regular Meeting  
Page 9 of 10 

 
OTHER 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if anything can be done to alleviate traffic problems at the 
Farmers Marker.  She said people are missing the entrance and the configuration at the exit road 
is not user friendly.  Mr. Griffin said a letter can be sent from the City to the highway department 
asking for the removal of the “porkchop” dividing the road.  He will keep Council updated. 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins asked if Council could discuss the youth protection ordinance.  
Mr. Griffin said he would add this discussion to a future Work Session. 
 
Council Member Daeke thanked the City for its assistance with the Ducky Derby on Saturday.  
He said without assistance from the Fire Department, Police Department, Street Department and 
Public Services the Derby would not happen.  He added this was the biggest year ever and 
thanked everyone for their help. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked for a status report at the next Council meeting regarding the 
Chavasse Avenue and Beckford Drive projects. 
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to go into Closed 
Session and stated there would be a report following the session. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
Council Member Daeke moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant for the 
following matters: a) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(3) regarding Attorney/Client Privilege 
Matters; b) Pursuant to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(6) regarding two Personnel Matters and c) Pursuant 
to G.S.§143-318.11 (a)(4) regarding an EDC Matter.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Peace-Jenkins and unanimously approved.  
 
Council Member Daeke moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Daye and unanimously approved.   
 
Mayor O’Geary asked the City Manager Griffin to report on two of the Close Session items. 
 
Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-75, Amendment #1 to the Contract with 
Stainback, Satterwhite & Zollicoffer, PLLC as it Pertains to City Attorney Service.  (CAF 
14-104)  
 
City Manager Griffin said a contract was entered into on 28 September 2008 for legal services to 
the City from the above law firm which designated John H. Zollicoffer, Jr. as the primary 
attorney to the City.   With the retirement of Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr., his name will be replaced 
with D. Rix Edwards becoming the City’s primary attorney.  Also, this amendment removes the 
attorney from the City’s payroll as a part-time employee and now the City will be billed monthly 
for all legal services provided by the law firm. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

 22 September 2014 Short Regular Meeting  
Page 10 of 10 

Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any questions.  There were no further questions so he called 
for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Rainey to approved Resolution 14-75, Amendment #1 to 
the Contract with Stainback, Satterwhite & Zollicoffer, PLLC as it Pertains to City Attorney 
Service. Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-Jenkins, and APPROVED by the following 
vote:  YES: Daeke, Simmons, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey and Peace-Jenkins. NO:  None.  
ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Daye.  (See Resolution Book 4, p 41) 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Daye joined the Work Session at 7:32 p.m.) 
 
Submission of Retirement Notice 
 
City Manager Griffin said it is with difficulty that he has submitted his notice of retirement from 
the City, effective 1 November 2014.  He then read his retirement notice which is incorporated 
by reference and hereby made part of these minutes. Mr. Griffin said as City Manager he will 
take a piece of this community with him and is very proud of the accomplishments made by staff 
even as they have had less to work with over the years. 
 
Mayor O’Geary said it has been a pleasure to work with Mr. Griffin who has been a hard worker 
and challenged the City to do its best.  The Mayor said he appreciated everything Mr. Griffin has 
done, thanked him for his dedication and wished him the very best.   
 
With no further comments, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council is prepared to adjourn and go into 
the Work Session 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Daeke moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye, 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7:37 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 

 



 

Minute Book 43 
22 September 2014 Work Session Minutes  

Page 1 of 3 
 

City Council Minutes--DRAFT 
Work Session 

22 September 2014 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry Daeke, Fearldine 
A. Simmons and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, City Clerk Esther McCrackin, Finance Director Kathy 
Brafford, Interim Recreation and Parks Director Steve Osborne, Code Compliance Director 
Corey Williams and Engineering Director Clark Thomas. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
 
The 22 September 2014 Work Session of the Henderson City Council was called to order by 
Mayor O’Geary at 7:37 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

 
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  Council Member Rainey 
moved to accept the Agenda as presented.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke and 
unanimously approved. 



 

Minute Book 43 
22 September 2014 Work Session Minutes  

Page 2 of 3 
 

WORK SESSION ITEMS 
 
Update on Request for Proposals from Environmental Firms with Respect to Two Projects:  
1) Brownfield Assessment Grant and 2) Inactive Landfill Assessment Grant.  (CM 14-31) 

Engineering Director Thomas explained requests for proposal have been solicited and are due 
today.  He said once the RFPs are reviewed he will be getting back to Council. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked if Mr. Thomas could reveal the names of the firms that 
responded so far.  Mr. Thomas said Cardno, out of Raleigh and Locklear, Locklear and Jacobs, 
out of Pinehurst. 
 
The Inactive Landfill Grant will be applied for through the NC Department of Environment and 
Natural Resources Division of Solid Waste.  Mr. Thomas said a consultant (Cardno) has 
performed on-site investigations at no cost to the city and its results will be submitted to 
NCDENR.  DENR will then create a list prioritized by environmental risk.  Mr. Thomas said he 
would keep Council abreast of the progress. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if there is any deadline for this project.  Mr. Thomas said 
although he has asked, no deadline date has been provided.   
 
Staff will keep Council up to date on any new developments with both projects. 
 
Installation of Water Spray Park.  (Reference:  CM 14-28) 
 
City Manager Griffin said Council Member Daeke asked for more information on the possibility 
of installing a water spray park. Interim Recreation and Parks Director Osborne has compiled the 
information presented this evening and the Recreation and Parks Commission will discuss the 
possibility at its October meeting.   
 
Council Member Daeke said this is good information but on a larger scale than he envisioned.  
He has been in touch with Oxford about its park and will be meeting with them for further 
details.  Council Member  Rainey said there is also a small park at Triangle Town Center in 
Raleigh. 
 
Council Member Simmons asked what locations are being considered.  City Manager Griffin 
said it’s too early in the process to determine.  Council Member Coffey suggested open lots and 
Mr. Griffin said perhaps lots owned by the City/County.  Mayor O’Geary said the park will have 
to be accessible to as many as possible.   
 
Discussion will continue as details are obtained. 



 

Minute Book 43 
22 September 2014 Work Session Minutes  

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Governmental Signs.  (CM 14-30) 
 
Interim Planning Director Corey Williams said questions have been brought to his attention 
regarding Zoning Code Section 408, Exempt Signs.  He said the Planning Board will meet on 
October 6 to review possible amendments and then this will be brought back to Council. 
 
OTHER 
 
Council Member Simmons asked what the City can do with rental property and landlords.  She 
expressed concern regarding a specific property on Chavasse Avenue.  City Manager Griffin 
asked Code Compliance Director Williams to explain the process. 
 
Mr. Williams said there seems to be a recent influx of abandoned properties and explained 
briefly that due process starts with identifying property, then notices are issued, timeframes need 
to be met, and several other steps before legal action can to be taken.  He said sometimes finding 
the legal owner is difficult.  Mr. Williams also shared abandoned property is occurring 
throughout the City, not in one specific area and emphasized local landlords are mostly 
responsible.  He’s finding it is the absentee property owners that he has the most difficulty with. 
 
Council Member Rainey understands the department is short of staff and asked if the Police are 
working with Code Compliance regarding this issue.  Mr. Williams responded yes. 
 
There were no other questions so Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Daeke and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7:54 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 September 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes 
Page 1 of 6 

 
 

 City Council Minutes 
Special Called Meeting 

25 September 2014 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe,  D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Member Fearldine A. Simmons 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Acting City Attorney Michael 
E. Satterwhite, and City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 25 September 2014 Special Called Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to 
order by Mayor James D. O’Geary at 12:02 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council 
Chambers, Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
Mayor O’Geary asked Council Member Rainey to provide the invocation and blessing.  Council 
enjoyed a few minutes of conversation and relaxation before beginning discussion. 
 
Council Member Daye shared that former Council Member Davis is back in a nursing home in 
Oxford following surgery. 



 
 
 
 
 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 September 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 6 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion to Set Forth a Process for the Appointment of an Individual as City Manager.   
 
Mayor O’Geary began the meeting by reading the attached memo which is incorporated by 
reference and hereby made part of these minutes.   Mayor O’Geary said Council needs to take its 
time and be deliberate it its decision making.  The Mayor then opened the floor for discussion. 
 
Council Member Rainey felt this process closely mimicked the procedure followed with the 
hiring of City Manager Griffin.  He said it worked well and felt the NC League of Municipality 
was very helpful. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked if the League has a pool of candidates.  Mayor O’Geary 
responded yes.  Mr. Kearney then asked if the League would facilitate the search for a City 
Manager, if this is something the City would do itself or if a professional consultant would be 
used.  Mayor O’Geary said the League did an excellent job before but this could be determined 
at the appropriate time. 
 
Council Member Coffey said she would like someone to fill the position that has a vested interest 
in the community and that is willing to relocate to Henderson, buy a house and pay city taxes. 
Council Member Daeke agreed with the concept but felt this stipulation would limit the pool 
which he felt could keep the best applicant from filling the position.  Council Member Peace-
Jenkins asked what is more important, owning a home or renting and filling the position.  
Council Member Coffey said she would like someone to own a home that would cause them to 
be more committed to remaining in the position.  Council Member Kearney added this 
stipulation would require moving expenses.  Mr. Kearney felt the interim manager process is the 
most important matter at this time.  Council Member Rainey felt positive characteristics should 
be kept in the forefront during this process.  He expressed concern about the expenses if 
someone who buys a house, takes the position and then decides the position is not a good fit and 
resigns.  Mr. Rainey commented also that he would like to have someone in place before the 
seating of the new Council in 2015. 
 
Council Member Daeke agreed the process is what is important to decide today and felt the steps 
laid out in the memo were acceptable.   
 
Council Member Inscoe felt the first step is to secure an interim manager and asked the Mayor to 
meet with Mr. Hartwell Wright, from the NC League of Municipalities, as soon as possible.  He 
suggested Mr. Wright provide three candidates and asked that Council have the opportunity to 
review the resumes before meeting as a whole. 



 
 
 
 
 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 September 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 6 

Mayor O’Geary agreed that finding an interim manager is the matter at hand and asked if what 
was proposed is a good format.  He then asked for a consensus of Council if it agreed with the 
format as presented and the response was as follows:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, 
Peace-Jenkins, Daeke and Daye.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Simmons. 
 
Mayor O’Geary then asked twice if Council would like to discuss any other issues relating to the 
search process.   
 
There were no questions.  Mayor O’Geary then asked if Council was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Rainey moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-
Jenkins and was unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned 12:43 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor  
 
      ATTEST: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin  
      City Clerk 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 September 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 6 

 
 
 
 

Office of the Mayor 
134 Rose Avenue, P. O. Box 1434, Henderson, NC  27536 

Phone 252.430.5701 : Fax 252.492.7935 :  E-mail rgriffin@ci.henderson.nc.us 
www.ci.henderson.nc.us  

 
 

25 September 2014 
 
 

TO: City Council Members Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke,  
 Simmons and Daye 
 City Manager Griffin 
 City Attorney Zollicoffer 
 City Clerk McCrackin 
 
FR: Mayor James D. O’Geary 
 
RE: City Manager Transition Process 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Thank you for meeting with me today so we can begin the discussion on our next steps in wake 
of the City Manager’s notice of retirement.  I would suggest we make the processes for finding 
an interim manager and our next manager a deliberative one.  In so doing, I urge us to not be 
rushed, as the recruitment and selection process can take six to nine months. 
 
Most of us were involved with the city manager selection process when we were seated as a 
Council in December 2007.  At that time, the previous Council had selected Mr. Ed Wyatt as the 
interim manager and we became fully involved in the city manager recruitment and selection 
process.  Six of the current nine of us were involved with that process as follows:  
Councilmembers Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke and Daye, and me.  Thus, I feel much 
more confident with this process than most of us felt back in 2007 when we found ourselves 
having to find a new city manager. 
 
Our situation is also quite different in 2014 from what it was in 2007.  We have a cohesive 
governing body and staff operating smoothly under the auspices of the Roles and 
Responsibilities Agreement and the Council-Manager form of government protocol.  In 2007 and 
early 2008 we found ourselves without a City Manager, Finance Director, City Clerk and Human 
Resources Director.  Our Assistant City Manager was new in his role, though a veteran in the 



 
 
 
 
 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 September 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes 
Page 5 of 6 

City Engineer’s Office.  In short, we had a significant staff leadership void.  We have a dynamic 
Strategic Plan being actively utilized to help guide our decision making and despite the 
continuing effects of the Recession, our finances are not in crisis.  Thank you, Mr. Griffin, for 
helping us fill this void and getting us into this much stronger position which we are enjoying 
today. 
 
This allows the Council more flexibility in its recruitment and selection process and allows us to 
now better articulate our goals and objectives as a governing body to potential new candidates.  
Thus, ladies and gentlemen, I feel comfortable as we move forward and assured we will be 
successful in our efforts to find a good, solid replacement for Mr. Griffin. 
 
I would like to suggest we move forward in a manner similar to that used in the 2007/08 
processes because we are familiar with the processes and were ultimately successful with our 
decision making.  I think we should consider addressing this matter as follows: 
 
Step 1:  Interim City Manager 
 
I would suggest we utilize the NC League of Municipalities (League) to assist us in finding a 
retired, seasoned city manager to serve as a part-time interim city manager until we can select the 
new city manager.  If you feel comfortable with this process, Mr. Griffin will contact the League 
and set up an appointment with one of its staff persons, probably and preferably Mr. Harwell 
Wright, and begin that process.   
 
This process was used in 2007 and no one could have asked for better interim city manager 
services than that provided by Mr. Ed Wyatt.   
 
Step 2:  City Manager Credentials Process 
 
After the interim city manager has been appointed, I think we should then move to discuss the 
attributes we would like to have in a new city manager.  I would suggest using the League or one 
of its affiliate organizations to assist us in this process.  Once we have made these 
determinations, it would then be appropriate to initiate advertisements for the position. 
 
Step 3:  City Manager Recruitment and Selection Processes 
 
Once the position is advertised, we can move forward with recruitment, review of applications 
and ultimately interviews.   
 
City Council as Committee of the Whole 
 
The processes required of the Mayor and City Council to recruit and select our next city manager 
are too important to be left to just a few persons.  Therefore, I want to suggest Councilmembers 
be fully involved in the process as a Committee of the Whole.  As Mayor, I will serve as the 



 
 
 
 
 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 September 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes 
Page 6 of 6 

direct contact with the individual assisting the City with the recruitment and selection processes 
and I shall work diligently to keep the Council informed.  I shall also call special meetings as 
needed to advise Councilmembers, solicit advice and decision making as the process matures.  
 
Next Steps  
 
I would like to fully discuss my suggestions with Council today.  Subsequent to our discussion 
and adjustments as you may feel necessary, obtain a consensus so I might move forward with the 
process.   
 
I welcome your input and our working together to find our next city manager. 
 
POG 

 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

14 October 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 4 

 
 City Council Minutes 
Special Called Meeting 

14 October 2014 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry E. Daeke, Fearldine A. Simmons and 
George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
Council Member D. Michael Rainey (Clerk’s Note:  Mr. Rainey had a prior commitment which 
prevented him from attending this Special Called meeting.) 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney D. Rix Edwards,  City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Kathy Brafford, Engineering Director 
Clark Thomas and Human Resources Director Cathy Brown. 
 
(Clerk’s Note:  As of 1 October 2014, D. Rix Edwards became the City Attorney and he was 
officially sworn in prior to this meeting by the City Clerk so he could begin his official functions)  
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 14 October 2014 Special Called Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order 
by Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.  Before 
beginning the new business, the City Clerk advised a consult with the City Attorney would be 
added to the Closed Session, pursuant to G.S. 143-318-11(1)(3).  



 

 
Minute Book 43 

14 October 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Consideration of Presentation by Mr. Hartwell Wright, Human Resources Specialist, NC 
League of Municipalities Regarding the Recruitment and Selection Process for a New City 
Manager. (Reference: None) 
 
The Mayor welcomed Mr. Hartwell Wright from the NC League of Municipalities (League) who 
is present to provide a suggested process for the Mayor and Council to follow in its search for a 
new City Manager.  
 
Mr. Wright brought greetings from several League workers and said it was a pleasure to be 
presenting to so many council members that he knows.  He distributed a packet of information 
outlining the selection process and strongly encouraged Council to follow the steps he suggest 
and to stay focused on the process.  He first reminded the Mayor that according to statutory 
regulations (NCGS 160A-150 of Chapter 160A, Article 7, Part 2) an Interim City Manager must 
be set in place until a City Manager is hired.  Mr. Wright then provided some statistics to help 
Council understand the current competition by saying as of yesterday, thirty (30) communities in 
North Carolina presently looking for managers.  So he encouraged professionalism in every 
aspect of the process. 
 
Mr. Wright went on to say the overall process involves recruitment, assessment and the hiring 
process.  Before beginning the process he encouraged Council to meet to decide 1) who does 
what; 2) whether the applicants will be held in confidential (if not the General Statues requires 
each candidate be notified that the information will be public and given the opportunity to 
withdraw before the release of information) rand 3) who will conduct the search.  Mr. Wright 
suggested Council consider accomplishments, look for candidates who will continue on the same 
path and provide strengths to move forward.  He said councils utilize a facilitator helpful to say 
focused during this process.  He also emphasized that certain words/phrases not be used in the 
recruitment process such as must/required.  Mr. Wright said “preferred” is most acceptable.  
 
Other points presented were where to place advertisements, establishing a fair salary, letters of 
acknowledgment to everyone interested in the position, and compiling a questionnaire to be 
returned with the City’s formal application.  Here again, Mr. Wright strongly suggested the City 
hire an outside firm to do a complete background check.  He also encouraged use of electronics 
such as Skye to narrow the field of candidates. 
 
When the field has been narrowed to 5-6 candidates, Mr. Wright suggested a written letter from 
the Mayor outlining the interview process and to include a spouse/significant other as 
appropriate --- showcasing the City.  He said it is very important that each candidate be asked the 
same questions by the same person with the same intensity.  It would also be appropriate to ask 
the candidate to “role play” either in writing or in person so Council can ascertain his/her skills 
in dealing with citizens/staff. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

14 October 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 4 

The Mayor should make a verbal offer with salary and terms once Council decides on a final 
candidate.  Negotiations may occur and Mr. Wright said the official offer letter and contract 
should come from the City Attorney. 
 
Lastly, Mr. Wright suggested Council keep the media informed of its process so citizens will 
understand the process and steps being taken while keeping the entire process confidential. 
 
Mayor O’Geary thanked Mr. Wright for his detailed presentation and asked Council for 
questions. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked about the advisor role.  Mr. Wright said normally the advisor is 
the Interim City Manager.  Council Member Coffey asked about the background checks.  Mr. 
Wright said using an outside firm is best.  Council Member Inscoe commented that this is a 
daunting process which will be arduous and said he hopes the proper person is selected.  Mr. 
Wright agreed and said if none of the candidates fit the profile created by Council the process 
should start all over again rather than hire the wrong person.  Council Member Peace-Jenkins 
said she, like others, have gone through this process before and thanked Mr. Wright for an 
excellent presentation.    Council Member Daeke said following the process is important and the 
steps as outlined will certainly help.  Council Member Simmons felt it was a very thorough 
review of what is needed.  Council Member Daye expressed his desire to find the right fit.  City 
Manager Griffin said he appreciated Mr. Wright’s guidance. 
 
Mayor O’Geary said the information will be very useful and asked if there were no further 
questions if Council was prepared to go into Closed Session.  He stated there will be a report 
following the session. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Council Member Coffey moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(6) for a Personnel Matter.  Motion seconded by Council Member Inscoe and 
unanimously approved.  
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion 
seconded by Council Member Daeke and unanimously approved.  
 
REPORT 
 
Designating Mr. Edward A. Wyatt As the City of Henderson, North Carolina Interim City 
Manager. (Resolution 14-83)   
 
City Manager Griffin reported that after discussion in closed session, pursuant to General Statute 
160-A-150, Article 7, Part 2, Council wishes to designate a qualified person to exercise the 
powers and execute the duties of City Manager until the position is filled.  In that light, Council 
has decided to ask Mr. Edward A. Wyatt, who served as Interim City Manager in Henderson 
from November 2007 to September 2008 to again serve in this capacity until a City Manager is 
hired. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

14 October 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 4 

 
 
Mr. Wyatt said he is delighted to have the opportunity to return to Henderson and will do his best 
for the City.  He looks forward to working with those he already knows and becoming familiar 
with new Council Members and staff. 
 
There was no discussion and Mayor O’Geary called for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Kearney moved the approval of Resolution 14-83, Designating Mr. Edward A. 
Wyatt As the City of Henderson, North Carolina Interim City Manager. Motion seconded by 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  Kearney, 
Coffey, Inscoe, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke Simmons and Daye.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  
ABSENT: Rainey. 
 
There was no further discussion and Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to recess 
until Monday, 20 October 2014 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
RECESS 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved for recess this meeting until Monday, 20 October 2014 at 6:00 
p.m.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey, and was unanimously approved.  The 
meeting adjourned 8:32 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor  
 
      ATTEST: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin  
      City Clerk 
  
 

 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

20 October 2014 Recessed Special Called Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 2 

 
 City Council Minutes 

Recessed Special Called Meeting from 14 October 2014 
20 October 2014 

 
 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry E. Daeke, Fearldine 
A. Simmons and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney D. Rix Edwards, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, and 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 20 October 2014 Recessed Special Called Meeting of the Henderson City Council was 
called to order by Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council 
Chambers, Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
Mayor O’Geary began the meeting by asking if Council was prepared to go back into the 
Recessed Closed Session.  
 
(Clerk’s Note:  Council Member Daye arrived at 6:12 p.m.) 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

20 October 2014 Recessed Special Called Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Council Member Rainey moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(6) for a Personnel Matter.  Motion seconded by Council Member Peace-Jenkins and 
unanimously approved.  
 
Council Member Inscoe moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Rainey and unanimously approved.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved to adjourn this meeting.  Motion seconded by Council 
Member Daeke, and was unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned 7:02 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor  
 
      ATTEST: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin  
      City Clerk 
  
 

 



CAF 14-30-A: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________ 

 

22 October 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  14-30-A 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-18-A, Amending Section 408 and 10-33.3 of the 
City Code and Zoning Ordinance Section 405.3 Relative to Signs.  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 3: Revise and align land use and sign ordinance 

 
 

Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 14-18-A, Amending Section 408 and 10-33.3 of the City Code and Zoning 

Ordinance Section 405.3 Relative to Signs. 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
This item has been discussed in prior Council meetings and it was decided that further clarification was 

needed.  The Planning Board met on 6 October 2014 and approved the draft ordinance with additional 
language added regarding policy and procedures used in permitting signs meet potential safety 
concerns as requested by staff. 
 
This ordinance in essence maintains the exemption for governmental sponsor signs and allows 
not-for-profits/civic organizations to erect signs with permission from City Council or the 
Zoning Administrator by issuance of a sign permit.  
 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Ordinance 14-18-A 
2. Planning Board Minutes 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _________ 
 
Council Meeting: 27 Oct 14 Short Reg. Meeting  



CAF 14-30-A: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 2 of 5 

 

ORDINANCE  14—18-A 
 

After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after a duly advertised public 
hearing thereon, Councilperson ___________________________ introduced the following 
Ordinance which was seconded by Councilperson ______________________ and read: 

AN ORDINANCE RELATIVE TO SIGNS  
 
The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 

Section 1.  That Section 408 of the City Code be rewritten to read as follows:   

“Section 408:  Exempt Signs. 
 
The Zoning Code shall not apply to any governmental sponsored signs or to any signs 
placed pursuant to a governmental sign program which has been approved by the City 
Council or the Zoning Administrator.”  
 

Section 2.  That the first sentence of Section 10-33.3 of the City Code be rewritten to read as 
follows:  
 

“Subject to the regulations of the North Carolina Department of Transportation, no 
person or entity shall place any sign except in compliance with the provisions of this City 
Code and in compliance with Section 405.3 of the City’s Zoning Code.” 
 
 

Section 3.  That Section 405.3 of the Zoning Code be rewritten to read as follows: 
 

“Section 405.3. Subject to the regulations of the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation, no person or entity shall place any sign except in compliance with the 
City Code unless a Zoning Permit is granted for the same.” 

 
Section 4.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 

 

 

 

 

 



CAF 14-30-A: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 3 of 5 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-___, upon motion of Council member 
__________________ and seconded by Council Member __________________, and having 
been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and was 
APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ___ day of ______________, 2014:     YES:        . 
NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 4**, p. **. 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-18-A An 
Ordinance Relative To Signs, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on **  
** 20** (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 8, pp. 
**. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 



CAF 14-30-A: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 4 of 5 

 

          City of Henderson 
   Planning and Community Development Department 
 Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue / Henderson, NC 27536-1434 

Phone: (252) 430-5723         FAX:  (252) 492-7935 
 

MINUTES 
HENDERSON PLANNING BOARD 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2014 – 3:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
Members Present – Horace Bullock, Marguerite Anduze, Arthur Henderson, Jimmie 
Ayscue, Charles Douglas, Keith Coffey;  
 
Members Absent – Michael Rainey; Phil Walters, Ricky Easter  
 
Staff Present – Development Service Director Corey Williams, City Attorney Rix Edwards 
 

 
(1) CALL TO ORDER – Meeting was called to order by Vice Chair Horace Bullock. Roll 
 was called. A quorum was present.  
 
(2) APPROVAL OF MINUTES No prior meeting. 
 
(3) BUSINESS – DISCUSSION 
 
 New Business 
 
 Case (PB05-14): Discussion Exempt Signs in Section 408 of the Zoning 
 Ordinance Relative Non –Governmental Signs 

 
Item was introduced and explained by Corey Williams, Development Service Director. 
Currently, signs may not be erected or maintained off premises except those by governmental 
sponsorship. Signs not sponsored by government, but sponsored by not-for-profits and civic 
organizations such as the Chamber of Commerce, cannot erect off premises signs. Due to citizen 
concerns regarding the restriction, a draft ordinance was considered.  In addition to the current 
rule, the proposed ordinance will permit other than governmental sponsored signs to erect off 
premise signs if granted permission City Council and issuance of a sign permit by the Zoning 
Administrator.  
 
The Planning Board (Board) additionally discussed fines and expressed concerns regarding 
businesses placing portable signs throughout the city and signs being placed so as not to block 
views provided by state and city street right of ways. The Board clarified that the proposed 
ordinance would permit no-for-profit organizations if proper permit were issued. The Board also 



CAF 14-30-A: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting: Public Hearing 
Page 5 of 5 

 

requested Mr. Williams and his staff develop signage guidance that would receive review by the 
City Attorney and approved by the City Manager.  
 
Motion was made by Ms. Coffey and seconded by Ms. Anduze to approve Ordinance 14-18A 
and to direct the Mr. Williams and his staff to develop a signage policy, reviewed by the City 
Attorney and approved by the City Manager, that would clarify the ability of not-for-profit 
organizations to erect signs with proper permits and in accordance with safety policy and 
procedures so as not to block state and city right of ways. A unanimous vote of 8-0; AYES: 
Horace Bullock, Marguerite Anduze, Arthur Henderson, Jimmie Ayscue, and Keith Coffey; 
NOES: None, ASBENT: None 
 
Recommendation now goes before the City Council for approval.  

 
(4)  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
NEXT MEETING: November 3, 2014 @ 3:30 PM 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by 
 
 
 
Corey K. Williams 
Development Service Director 

 



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 14 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

17 September 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-106 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-77, Authorizing the Execution of 
Quitclaim Deeds for Several Properties Outside City Limits Recorded in Error as 
Jointly Owned City/County Properties 

 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 CV 9:(Core Values)  We value a good working relationship with the County of Vance and 

believe that by working together in a cooperative effort we can better address the strategic 
challenges and opportunities facing our community. 

 
Recommendation:   

 
 Approval of Resolution 14-77, Authorizing the Execution of Quitclaim Deeds for Several 

Properties Outside City Limits Recorded in Error as Jointly Owned City/County Properties 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
On 16 September 2014 the City Manager’s office received a request from Porcha Brooks of the 
Vance County Tax Office regarding the execution of quit claim deeds for several properties 
recorded in Vance County Register of Deeds as owned by the City and County jointly.  These 
properties should have been registered as County owned properties only as they are outside of 
city limits and not under the City’s jurisdiction. 
 
 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 27 Oct 14  Short Reg. Meeting 



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 14 

 

City Attorney Zollicoffer has reviewed these quitclaim deeds and found them to be in order and 
approves the execution of said deeds for the properties described below: 
 
QUITCLAIM DEED –1:  Map #0303 02005, Home Land, Henderson NC recorded in Book 451 
Page 605 in the Vance County Registry  

 
QUITCLAIM DEED –2: Parcel I.D. # 0111 03023; off Nicholas St., Henderson NC recorded in 
Book 395, Page 433 in the Vance County Registry. 
 
QUITCLAIM DEED –3: Parcel I.D. # 0066 050003, 181 Ft. St. Matthews St., Henderson 
recorded in Book 164, Page 46 in the Vance County Registry. 
 
QUITCLAIM DEED – 4: Parcel I.D. # 0111 01018, Chavasse Land, Henderson NC recorded in 
Book 805, Page 697 in the Vance County Registry. 
           
QUITCLAIM DEED – 5: Parcel I.D. # 0068 02052, 412 Bobbitt Street, Henderson NC recorded 
in Book 631, Page 566 in the Vance County Registry. 
 
It is requested Council approve the execution of these quitclaim deeds as requested by Vance 
County.   
 
 
Enclosure: 
 

1. Resolution 14-77 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 14 

 

RESOLUTION 14-77 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF QUIT CLAIM DEEDS FOR 
SEVERAL PROPERTIES OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS RECORDED IN 

ERROR AS JOINTLY OWNED CITY/COUNTY PROPERTIES  
 
 

WHEREAS,  the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
Februrary 2014, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one Core Value as follows:  CV 9: maintain a good 

working relationship with the County of Vance; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are several properties located outside of city limits that have been recorded in 

error as owned by Vance County and the City of Henderson in error; and 
 
WHEREAS, Vance County has requested the City of Henderson to sign Quitclaim Deeds for 

said properties to correct the records; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is Council’s desire to assist with this process as expeditiously as possible. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it does hereby 

authorize the execution of the Quitclaim Deeds for the following properties: (See 
Attachment A to this Resolution) 

 
QUITCLAIM DEED –1: 

   Map #0303 02005, Home Land, Henderson NC recorded in Book 451 Page 605 
 in the Vance County Registry  

 
QUITCLAIM DEED –2: 

 Parcel I.D. # 0111 03023, off Nicholas St., Henderson NC recorded in Book 395, 
 Page 433 in the Vance County Registry. 
 

QUITCLAIM DEED –3:  
 Parcel I.D. # 0066 050003, 181 Ft. St. Matthews St., Henderson recorded in Book 
 164, Page 46 in the Vance County Registry. 
 

QUITCLAIM DEED – 4: 
 Parcel I.D. # 0111 01018, Chavasse Land, Henderson NC recorded in Book 805, 
 Page 697 in the Vance County Registry. 
           
           QUITCLAIM DEED – 5:  
 Parcel I.D. # 0068 02052, 412 Bobbitt Street, Henderson NC recorded in Book 
 631, Page 566 in the Vance County Registry. 



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 14 

 

BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED THAT the Mayor or his appointee is authorized to sign said 
Quitclaim Deeds to effect the transfer of said property to the sole ownership of the 
County of Vance. 

The foregoing Resolution 14-77, upon motion of Council Member**and second by Council 
Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
APPROVED on this the ** day of ---------2014:  YES:.  NO:.  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT:   
  

     
   _____________________________
   James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________   
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 14 

 

 

Resolution 14-77 
Attachment A 
Quitclaim #1 



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 14 

 

 



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 14 

 

 

Resolution 14-77 
Attachment A 
Quitclaim #2 



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 14 

 

 
  



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 14 

 

 

Resolution 14-77 
Attachment A 
Quitclaim #3 



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 14 

 

 



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 14 

 

 

Resolution 14-77 
Attachment A 
Quitclaim #4 

Resolution 14-77 
Attachment A 
Quitclaim #4



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 14 

 

 



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 14 

 

 

Resolution 14-77 
Attachment A 
Quitclaim #5 



CAF 14-106: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 14 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 32 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

10 October 2014 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 14-109 

Consideration of Approval of: 1) Resolution 14-79, Authorizing the Execution of 
Change Order #5 for the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Project to Devere 
Construction Company, Inc. in the Amount of $22,825.16, and 2) Ordinance 14-49 
FY15 Budget Amendment #13, Amending the CIP Sewer Fund for Change Order 
#5 to the Water Reclamation Facility Renovation Project 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

Systems. 
 
Recommendation:   
 

Approval of: 
 1) Resolution of 14-79, Authorizing the Execution of Change Order #5 for the Henderson 

Water Reclamation Facility Project to Devere Construction Company, Inc. in the Amount 
of $22,825.16 

 2) Ordinance 14-49, FY15 Budget Amendment #13, Amending the CIP Sewer Fund for 
Change Order #5 to the Water Reclamation Facility Renovation Project.    

 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
On 10 Dec 2010, the City Council approved acceptance of a State Revolving Loan, via 
Resolution 12-98, in the amount of $16,615,000 for improvements to the Henderson Water 
Reclamation Facility providing funding for major improvements to the plant which will simplify 
treatment processes as well as reduce operational costs. 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 27 Oct 14 Short Reg. Meeting 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 32 

 

Change Order #1 in the amount of $55,709 was approved by the City Council on 23 September 
2013, via Resolution 13-09-A, leaving a contingency balance of $601,431. 
 
Change Order #2 was approved in the amount of $24,204.76 on 27 January 2014 leaving a 
contingency balance of $577,226. 
 
Change Order #3 was approved in the amount of $78,079.367 on 28 April 2014 via Resolution 
14-17, leaving a contingency balance of $499,146. 
 
A correction to the contingency line item for a previous budget amendment was approved in the 
amount of $50,500 on 12 May 2014 via Ordinance 14-30, Budget Amendment #34, leaving a 
contingency balance of $448,646. 
 
Change Order #4 was approved in the amount of $10,558.49 on 14 June 2014 via Resolution 14-
17-A, leaving a balance of $438,087. 
 
Change Order #5 consists of grading changes around the new maintenance building and the 
addition of vent piping for drain lines at the solids handling building. 
 
The items listed below are proposed changes/additions that were discovered during the 
construction process that were not in the original bid, but necessary due to code changes, utility 
conflicts and items needed to properly operate the new plant.  City staff and McGill Associates 
recommend approval of this change order and the State has approved them as eligible for 
funding. 
 

Graph Provided by McGill Associates 
 

# DESCRIPTION PRICE DAYS

1 Grading changes at new maintenance building 20,311.94$    5

2 Addition of vent piping for dain line at solids handling building 2,513.22$      3

Adverse weather days ‐$                 7

Total 22,825.16$    15

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER FIVE

 
 

 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Resolution 14-79 
2. Ordinance 14-49 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 32 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   14-79 
 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CHANGE ORDER #5 TO DEVERE CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO THE HENDERSON WATER RECLAMATION 

FACILITY PROJECT 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in February 
2014, and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives as follows: KSO 5: Provide 

Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure - To provide reliable, dependable and environmentally 
compliant infrastructure systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council accepted loan funding for this purpose from the NC Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources, Infrastructure Finance Section; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s Consulting Engineer and City staff recommend approval of Change Order #5, as 

outlined in the description provided by McGill Associates, to Devere Construction Company, Inc. 
being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, subject to approval of the 
Infrastructure Finance Section. 

 
WHEREAS, there is $438,087 remaining in the contingency fund, which could be used for these costs 

pending City Council approval; and 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY APPROVE the execution of Change Order #5 of the Henderson Water Reclamation 
Facility Improvement Project to Devere Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of 
$22,825.16, subject to approval by the State; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to sign all agreements and documents 

necessary to effect said Agreement. 
 
The foregoing Resolution 14-79, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council Member **, 
and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was ***** on this the *** 
day of **** 2014:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          ABSENT:   . 

 
              _____________________________ 
              James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 44, pp. **. 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 32 

 

 
 

Resolution 14-79 
Attachment A 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 32 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 32 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 32 

 

 
 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 32 

 

 
 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 15 of 32 

 

  



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 16 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 17 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 18 of 32 

 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 19 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 20 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 21 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 22 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 23 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 24 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 25 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 26 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 27 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 28 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 29 of 32 

 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 30 of 32 

 

O R D I N A N C E   14-49 
 
 

FY 2014—2015 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 13 
AMENDING THE CIP SEWER FUND  
FOR CHANGE-ORDER #5 TO THE  

WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY RENOVATION PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 11 June 2014 adopted the FY14-15 

Annual Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the Sewer Fund, said fund referred to as 44: CIP Sewer Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 31 of 32 

 

FUNDS:
PROJECT: Water Reclamation Facility Renovation

Approved Current
11-Apr-11 Budget Amendment Revised

State CWMTF Grant 44-847-458161 -$                   600,000$              -$                         600,000$                 
44-847-458221 -$                   16,115,000$         -$                         16,115,000$            
44-847-458222 -$                   1,000,000$           -$                         1,000,000$              
44-847-461070 -$                   779,110$              -$                         779,110$                 

Trans fr: 71 CR Utilities 44-847-461071 70,000$             -$                      -$                         -$                        
Trans fr: 79 Rate Stabilization 44-847-461079 -$                   103,360$              -$                         103,360$                 

 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        

Total 70,000$             18,597,470$         -$                         18,597,470$            
18,597,470$            

Approved Current
11-Apr-11 Budget Amendment Revised

44-847-461001 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        
44-847-510200 2,000$               5,000$                  -$                         5,000$                     

Engineering Preliminary Engineering Report 44-847-510301 68,000$             68,000$                -$                         68,000$                   

44-847-223003 -$                   843,125$              -$                         843,125$                 

44-847-223004 -$                   32,105$                -$                         32,105$                   

44-847-223005 -$                   39,380$                -$                         39,380$                   

44-847-223006 -$                   115,810$              -$                         115,810$                 

44-847-461002 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        

44-847-223010 -$                   500,000$              -$                         500,000$                 
44-847-499099 -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        
44-847-507100 -$                   27,000$                -$                         27,000$                   
44-847-510400 -$                   15,687,553$         22,826$                    15,710,379$            

44-847-670001 -$                   367,300$              -$                         367,300$                 
Transfer to Capital Reserve Utilities 44-847-561070 -$                   379,110$              -$                         379,110$                 

44-847-999010 -$                   438,087$              (22,826)$                  415,261$                 
44-847-999020 -$                   95,000$                -$                         95,000$                   

Total 70,000$             18,597,470$         -$                         18,597,470$            
18,597,470$            

Variance -$                         

Approved PER work and established project ordinance: $70,000

27 Oct 14: CAF 14-109; Res 14-79; Ord 14-49; BA#13 To amend the project budget for change order #5 to the construction contract with Devere Construction 
Company.  These changes are being brought before Council during the regular meeting on October 27, 
2014.  The costs associated with this change order total $22,826.  These additional costs are being 
budgeted from the Contingency line item.

12 May 14: CAF 14-59; Ord 14-30; BA#34 To amend the project budget for corrections to FY 2013 BA #22 and to appropriate an additional amount 
for Admin/Legal Fees.  The budget for Engineering Design was incorrectly eliminated when preparing BA 
#22 - this will restore that budget line.

27 Jan 14: CAF 14-13; Res 14-07; Ord 14-08; BA#24 To amend the project budget for change order #2 to the construction contract with Devere Construction 
Company.  These changes were brought before Council during the work session on January 13, 2014.  
The costs associated with this change order total $24,205.  These additional costs are being budgeted 
from the Contingency line item.

24 Mar 14: CAF 14-06; Res 14-17; Ord 14-26; BA#30 To amend the project budget for change order #3 to the construction contract with Devere Construction 
Company.  These changes are being brought before Council during the work session on March 24, 2014.  
The costs associated with this change order total $85,468.  These additional costs are being budgeted 
from the Contingency line item.

11 June 14: CAF 14-06-A; Res 14-17-A; Ord 14-26-A; BA#37 To amend the project budget for change order #4 to the construction contract with Devere Construction 
Company.  These changes are being brought before Council during the regular meeting on June 9, 2014.  
The costs associated with this change order total $10,559.  These additional costs are being budgeted 
from the Contingency line item.

To amend the project budget for changes in post-bid estimates.  The transfer side of Fund 79 was part of 
BA#10; therefore that side of the transaction is not being duplicated here.  The project originally called for 
a transfer in from CR Utilities (Fund 70).  After notification of the $600,000 CWMTF Grant was received, 
the project budget was amended to revert those funds back to CR Utilities ($379,110).  After all bids and 
costs were received, it has been determined that $400,000of those funds are needed to complete the 
funding of this project, with the remaining $103,360 to come from the Rate Stabilization Fund

14 Jan 13: CAF 13-12; Res 13-09; Ord 13-08; BA#22

To amend the project budget for changes in post-bid estimates.  ECS Carolinas, LLP performed the 
subsurface exploration and geotechnical engineering work and it is being recommended by McGill 
Associates that they perform the Construction Materials Testing Services.  The estimated cost to perform 
this work is $115,810 and the current budget is $100,000.  The additional cost is being budgeted from the 
Contingency line item.

24 June 13: CAF 13-74; Res 13-51; Ord 13-37; BA#40

To amend the project budget for changes or proposed modifications to the engineering contract being 
recommended by McGill Associates.  These changes include adding alternate #5 to the original contract 
price.  The cost of alternate #5 in the original bid was $33,000 and the contractor has agreed to honor the 
same price at this time.  In addition to the cost for alternate #5, other costs as outlined in the letter are for 
unsuitable soils, telescoping valve adjustments and door closures, bringing the total amount of the 
proposed change order to $55,709.  The additional cost is being budgeted from the Contingency line 
item.

23 Sept 13: CAF 13-12-A; Res 13-09-A; Ord 13-08-A; BA#13

26 Nov 12: CAF 12-115; Res 12-73; Ord 12-66; BA#12; MB42,p Notification of approval of CWMTF grant: $600,000. Transfer funds previously transferred in from Capital 
Reserve Utilities back to that fund.

11 Apr 11: CAF 11-70; Res 11-44, Ord 11-29; MB42, p.

14 Nov 11: CAF 11-B-134; Res 11-111; Ord 11-62; MB42, p.

10 Oct 11: CAF 11-134; MB42, p.
26 Oct 11: CAF 11-A-134; Res 11-103; MB42, p.

Mini-Brooks discussion
Approved Mini-Brooks exemption

25 June 12: CAF 12-75; Ord 12-42; BA# 53; MB42,p 492 Amend for decrease in estimated closing fees for grant and loan administration (23,190)
Phase 3 is construction and is estimated at $14,075,000

award of contract to McGill for engineering/deisgn phase and establishing total project budget

Phase 1 was Preliminary Engineering & legal/admin: $70,000

28 Nov 11: CAF 11-C-134, Ord 11-62, MB42, p

CG&L = Construction Grants & Loans from State of NC, DENR

7First budget amendment to Project Ordinance: $1,033,900

Engineering Geotechnical

Engineering Bidding & Aw ard Phase

Phase 2 is design engineering, permitting, bidding and project contract award: $1,044,610

12 Dec 11:  CAF 11-D-134, Ord 11-62, MB42, p

Ordinance 14-49

State Revolving Loan

 

EXPENDITURES

Legal/Administrative

Phase 1
Admin, Permitting and Legal Fees

Phase 2

Phase 3

Admin, Permitting and Legal Fees-design phase

Closing Fee-grant and loan administration

Engineering  Permitting Adminstration

Land Acquisition

Authorized application for grant/loan14 Feb 11: CAF 11-38; Res 11-12; MB 42, p.
Notes:Reference:

Construction Costs

Contingency

44: CIP SEWER

Contingencies & Other

Engineering Design

Captial Outlay Reserve--not yet aw arded

FY 14-15 Budget Amendment #13

Budget Amendment #10 to this Capital/Grant Project

Engineering Contingency

Project Budget Created on 11 Apr 11

Construction Admin & Inspection

REVENUES

State RFL Grant
Trans fr: 70 CR Utilities

 



CAF 14-79: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 32 of 32 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-49, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the 27th day of October 2014:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 14-109 
  
 
 
 
__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 14-49  adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ________________ 2014. This Ordinance is 
recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p.***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****. 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  

 



CAF 14-89: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting  
Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

22 October 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  14-89 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-51, Authorizing a Contract with Locklear, 
Locklear & Jacobs, in Assisting the City with a Grant Application in Conjunction with an 
EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 

 KSO 5:  Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure 
 KSO 8:  Provide Financial Resourcing 
 

Recommendation: 
 

 Approval of Resolution 14-51, Authorizing a Contract with Locklear, Locklear & Jacobs, in 
Assisting the City with a Grant Application in Conjunction with an EPA Brownfields Assessment 
Grant 

 
Executive Summary 
 
Information was presented to City Council and staff relative to potential EPA grant funding, specifically a  
Brownfield Assessment Grant.  It was felt that this could have potential benefits to the City in identifying 
various properties which may currently be undevelopable or the use is limited due to environmental 
concerns. 
 
Due to existing city policy and possible EPA regulations relative to selecting engineering firms, an RFP 
was sent out and advertised requesting information from those who are interested in assisting the city in 
preparing a grant application for a Brownfield Assessment Grant.  Two RFPs were received on 22 
September 2014; one from Cardno and one from Locklear, Locklear and Jacobs, PLLC.  Both firms 
exhibited competence, integrity, professionalism and success in securing grants for their perspective 
clients. However, based on the references and other information submitted, staff is recommending that 
Locklear, Locklear & Jacobs, PLLC be granted the opportunity to work with the City in preparing the 
grant application.  There is no cost to the City for this service.  
 
 
Enclosure: 
 
 1. Resolution 14-51 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item:    ______ 
 
Council Meeting:  27 Oct 14 Short Reg. Meeting 
 



CAF 14-89: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting  
Page 2 of 5 

 

R E S O L U T I O N  14-51 
 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH LOCKLEAR, 
LOCKLEAR & JACOBS, PLLC TO ASSIST THE CITY WITH 

AN APPLICATION IN CONJUNCTION WITH A 
BROWNFIELDS ASSESSMENT GRANT 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 
2014 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 

5:  Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure.  To provide reliable, dependable and 
environmentally compliant infrastructure systems; and KSO 8: Provide Financial 
Resourcing:  To provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and capital outlay 
necessary to meet the needs of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory authorities; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, a Request For Proposal (RFP) was sent out and advertised soliciting firms 
interested in assisting the city in writing and securing an EPA Brownfields Assessment 
Grant; and 
 

WHEREAS, proposals were received from two firms by the deadline of 22 September 2014: and 
 

WHEREAS, proposals were reviewed and Locklear, Locklear & Jacobs, PLLC was selected 
based on the experience of the firm and references of past projects; and 
 

WHEREAS, Locklear, Locklear & Jacobs, PLLC has agreed to assist the City in preparing a 
grant application at no cost to the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, this contract does not obligate the City to utilize this firm for any other work; and 
 
WHEREAS, any future contracts, in the event funding is secured, would be subject to City 

Council approval; and  
 
WHEREAS, the deadline for the EPA Brownfields Assessment Grant Application is 15 

December 2014; and 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HENDERSON, that James D. O’Geary, Mayor, is authorized to enter into a contract 
with Locklear, Locklear & Jacobs, PLLC, being more fully articulated in Attachment A 
to this Resolution, in assisting the City in the preparation of a grant application relative to 
the Brownfields Assessment Grant  

 
 



CAF 14-89: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting  
Page 3 of 5 

 

The foregoing Resolution 14-51, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member *** and having been submitted to a roll call vote, received the following votes and was 
______________ on this the ___ day of __________ 2014:  YES: NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  
ABSENT: None. 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
_______________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 



CAF 14-89: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting  
Page 4 of 5 

 

 
CONTRACT FOR GRANT WRITING SERVICES 

 
  
This AGREEMENT made this _____ day of October 2014, by and between the City of Henderson 
(COH), with principal mailing address of PO Box 1434 Henderson, NC 27536, hereinafter called the 
“OWNER”, and LOCKLEAR, LOCKLEAR & JACOBS, PLLC, PO Box 3119 Pembroke, NC 
28372, hereinafter called the “ENGINEER”.  
  
WHEREAS, the OWNER intends to submit the CITY OF HENDERSON BROWNFIELDS 
COMMUNITY-WIDE ASSESSMENT GRANT hereinafter called “BROWNFIELD”, The 
OWNER has requested following services:  
  
  
1. GRANT WRITING SERVICES  
 
  
  
NOW, THEREFORE, the OWNER and ENGINEER, for the consideration hereinafter named, agree 
as follows:  
  
  
GRANT WRITING SERVICES  
  
The Engineer will provide OWNER with GRANT WRITING and lead in grant application preparation 
with input and review by the City. Included in this task is the collection of data required in the grant 
application, meeting with existing community groups, and assistance in the identification of potential 
properties or areas to be included in the application.    
  
The grant writing services shall include, but is not limited to, the following:  
  
1. Assistance in preparation of EPA Brownfield Assessment Grant.   
2. Assistance in preparation of required support letters.  
3. Assistance in the projection of number of Phase I and Phase II Environmental Site Assessments 
anticipated to be completed.   
4. Entry of project-specific Information in the EPA Brownfields Assessment, Cleanup and 
Redevelopment          Exchange System (ACRES) database.   
5. Completion of EPA Brownfields Site-Specific Project Eligibility Determination Forms for grant 
submittal.   
  
PAYMENT  
  
The ENGINEER agrees to provide the services at no charge:  
  
The fee for the above Scope shall be a fixed amount that is approximately ZERO DOLLARS 
($0.00).   
   
 

 Resolution 14-51 
 Attachment A 



CAF 14-89: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting  
Page 5 of 5 

 

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have executed this AGREEMENT, in duplicate, the day and the 
year first above written, which is the effective date of this AGREEMENT. Upon ENGINEER and 
OWNER signature, this document is APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM.   
  
  
 LOCKLEAR, LOCKLEAR & JACOBS, PLLC  
 (ENGINEER)   
                                                            
  

       
By: ___________________________ 
    Jonathan E. Locklear  
 Vice-President  
 
  
 
  
Attest: _______________________________  
        Robby Locklear  
         President  
  
  
  
CITY OF HENDERSON   
(OWNER)  
  
By:  ________________________________________      
     Ray Griffin, Jr.  
     City Manager  
  
  
  
Attest: _______________________________  
       D. Rix Edwards  
       City Attorney  
 



CAF 14-111: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

30 September 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 14-111 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-80, Authorizing the Execution of a Right of 
Way Agreement with the North Carolina Department of Transportation in Conjunction 
with the I-85 Improvement Project I-0914BA 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems. 
 
 CV 7:(Core Values)  Teamwork and Collaborative Efforts- We value teamwork and collaborative 

efforts with our fellow workers, stakeholders and partners 
 
Recommendation:   

 
 Approval of Resolution 14-80, Authorizing the Execution of a Right of Way Agreement with the 

North Carolina Department of Transportation in Conjunction with the I-85 Improvement Project I-
0914BA. 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
The North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) is in the process of securing any necessary 
Right of Way and/or easements in conjunction with the I-85 project including bridge crossings.  The City 
and County own a property adjacent to I-85/Andrews Avenue Right of Way and additional Right of Way 
is needed by the NCDOT to perform construction in this area.  An appraisal was performed on the 
parcel(s) and the amount of the offer based on the appraisal is $2,920, which would be split evenly 
between the City and the County. 
 
Staff is recommending approval of the Right of Way agreement and it is also being considered by the 
Vance county commissioners at their board meeting in October. 
 
Enclosure: 

1. Resolution 14-80 
2. Acquisition Map 
3. Appraisal of Property 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 27 Oct. 14 Short  Reg. Meeting 



CAF 14-111: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 

 

RESOLUTION 14-80 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RIGHT-OF-WAY 
AGREEMENT WITH THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE I-85 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT I-9014BA 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in  
2014 and identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one Key Strategic Objective and one Core Value (CV): 

KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and CV 7: Teamwork and Collaborative Efforts. 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) seeks a right-of-way so 

it may make improvements to Interstate Highway 85 (I-85); specifically, it seeks a right-
of-way crossing property owned by the City of Henderson, North Carolina and the County 
of Vance, North Carolina, (Vance County), which is needed in conjunction with a bridge 
replacement at the intersection of Andrews Avenue and I-85 and named by the NCDOT as 
the I-85 Improvement Project 1-9014BA; and 

 
WHEREAS, an appraisal was performed by a NCDOT State-Certified Real Estate Appraiser on 

June 25, 2014 to determine the fair market value of the right-of-way through this 
property, consisting of approximately .408 acres and identified in the Vance County Tax 
Office as Tax Parcel 010701022 and Tax Parcel 010701023; and  

 
WHEREAS, the right-of-way consists of .084 acres, as noted in the map provided as Attachment 

A to this resolution, and has an appraised value of $2,920; and  
 
WHEREAS any monies paid by the NCDOT for the right-of-way will be divided equally 

between the City of Henderson and Vance County.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Henderson City Council that it authorizes: 
 

1. The Henderson City Attorney to work with the Vance County Attorney to ensure 
necessary documents are provided and agreements executed to effect transfer of the 
aforementioned property from the City of Henderson and Vance County to the NCDOT. 

2. The Mayor or his appointee may sign these agreements, as prepared and approved by the 
Henderson City Attorney, to effect this transfer. 

 



CAF 14-111: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 

 

The foregoing Resolution 14-80, upon motion of Council Member**and second by Council 
Member ** and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
APPROVED on this the ** day of ---------2014:  YES:.  NO:.  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT:    
             
       _____________________________  
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________   
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 



CAF 14-111: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 

 

CAF 14-111 
Attachment #2 



CAF 14-111: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 
  

 

CAF 14-111 
Attachment #3 



CAF 14-73-A: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
16 October 2014 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 14-73-A 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 14-25, FY 15 Budget Amendment # 14, 
Establishing a Budget for the Lease Purchase Financing Agreement with SunTrust 
Equipment Finance & Leasing Corp. 
 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Ordinance 14-25, FY 15 Budget Amendment # 14, establishing a budget for the 

lease purchase financing agreement with SunTrust Equipment Finance & Leasing Corp.  
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 

At its regular meeting on 22 September 2014, Council approved a lease purchase financing 
agreement with SunTrust Equipment Financing and Leasing Corporation via Resolution 14-
47.  This agreement provided for the purchase of five vehicles, one Ford Interceptor Utility 
Vehicle and two Dodge Chargers for the Police Dept. and two Ford Interceptor Utility 
Vehicles for the Fire Dept.   Lease purchase payments were included in the FY 14-15 budget 
to provide for the acquisition of these vehicles.  This Ordinance and Budget Amendment 
serves the purpose of establishing the budget for the proceeds of the lease purchase 
transaction ($149,712) and the corresponding capital expenditures by the Police and Fire 
Department for the purchase of these vehicles.  The remaining difference between the 
budgeted lease payment and the “actual” lease payment ($2,870) for year one of the lease is 
being moved to the Non-Departmental Reserve account. 

Enclosure: 
 

1. Ordinance 14-25 
2. Resolution 14-47 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 27 October 14 Work Session 



CAF 14-73-A: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 

 

O R D I N A N C E  14-25 
 

FY 15 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 14, ESTABLISHING A BUDGET 
FOR THE LEASE PURCHASE FINANCING AGREEMENT WITH 

SUNTRUST EQUIPMENT FINANCE & LEASING CORP. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 11 June 2014, adopted its 
FY 14-15 Operating Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved a lease purchase financing arrangement with SunTrust 

Equipment Finance & Leasing Corporation at its meeting on 22 September 2014 via 
Resolution 14-47; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating budget to provide for the purchase of the equipment that was incorporated 
within that financing arrangement ; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

 Lease Proceeds 10-100-457500 -$             -$               149,712$         149,712$                    
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total -$             -$               149,712$         149,712$                    
149,712$                    

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Police Capital Outlay > $5,000 10-510-507405 19,000$        19,000$         67,696$          86,696$                      
Fire Capital Outlay > $5,000 10-530-507405 15,000$        15,000$         48,016$          63,016$                      
Debt Service Lease Purchase Payment 10-680-508400 21,100$        21,100$         31,130$          52,230$                      
Non-Departmental Reserve 10-660-900999 65,000$        65,000$         2,870$            67,870$                      

Total 120,100$      120,100$        149,712$         269,812$                    
269,812$                    

Variance -$               

10: GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

FUNDS:
FY 14-15 Budget Amendment #14

Notes:
To budget for proceeds of the lease purchase financing with SunTrust that was approved by Council at its 
meeting on 9/22/2014.  The lease purchase payments were included in the FY 2014-2015 budget; this budget 
amendment establishs the budget for the proceeds of the lease purchase transaction ($149,712) and the 
corresponding capital expenditures by the Police and Fire Departments for the purchase of three vehicles by 
Police and two by Fire.  The remaining difference between the budgeted lease payments and the "actual" 
lease payments are being moved to the Non-Departmental Reserve account.

Ordinance 14-73-A

10: GENERAL FUND REVENUES

Reference:
CAF# 14-73-A; Ordinance #14-25: BA# 14

10: General Fund

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CAF 14-73-A 
Attachment #1 



CAF 14-73-A: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 14-25, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 27 day of October 2014:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  
**.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 44 p. ***; CAF 14-73-A 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-25 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on **_________ 2014 (Minute Book 44 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 9, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of October 2014. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



CAF 14-73-A: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 

 

RESOLUTION  14-47 
 

AUTHORIZING FINANCING WITH SUNTRUST EQUIPMENT FINANCE 
& LEASING CORP. IN THE AMOUNT OF $149,711.45 FOR FIVE 
(5)VEHICLES: THREE (3) 2014 FORD INTERCEPTOR UTILITY 

VEHICLES - TWO FOR THE FIRE DEPT. AND ONE FOR THE POLICE 
DEPT.; AND TWO (2) 2014 V8 DODGE CHARGERS WITH POLICE 

PACKAGES FOR THE POLICE DEPT. 
   

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson, North Carolina (City) has previously approved in its budget 
for the Police and Fire departments to purchase five vehicles  which they have identified 
as necessary to carry on the operations of each of their respective departments and the 
Finance Officer has now presented a proposal for the financing of such equipment. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT: 
 

1. The City hereby determines to finance the purchase through SunTrust Equipment Finance 
& Leasing Corp. (“SunTrust”), in accordance with the proposal dated September 12, 
2014. The amount financed shall not exceed $149,711.45, the annual interest rate (in the 
absence of default or change in tax status) shall not exceed 1.98%, and the financing term 
shall not exceed five (5) years from closing.  

 
2. All financing contracts and all related documents for the closing of the financing (the 

“Financing Documents”) shall be consistent with the foregoing terms. All officers and 
employees of the City are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any 
Financing Documents, and to take all such further action as they may consider necessary 
or desirable, to carry out the financing of the Project as contemplated by the proposal and 
this resolution.  The Financing Documents shall include a Financing Agreement and 
Deed of Trust, as SunTrust may request. 

 
3. The Finance Officer is hereby authorized and directed to hold executed copies of the 

Financing Documents until the conditions for the delivery of the Financing Documents 
have been completed to such officer's satisfaction. The Finance Officer is authorized to 
approve changes to any Financing Documents previously signed by City officers or 
employees, provided that such changes shall not substantially alter the intent of such 
documents or certificates from the intent expressed in the forms executed by such 
officers. The Financing Documents shall be in such final forms as the Finance Officer 
shall approve, with the Finance Officer’s release of any Financing Document for delivery 
constituting conclusive evidence of such officer's final approval of the Document’s final 
form.  

 
4. The City shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission of which shall 

cause its interest payments on this financing to be includable in the gross income for 
federal income tax purposes of the registered owners of the interest payment obligations. 

CAF 14-73-A 
Attachment #2 



CAF 14-73-A: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 

 

The City hereby designates its obligations to make principal and interest payments under 
the Financing Documents as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for the purpose of 
Internal Revenue Code Section 265(b)(3).  

 
5. The City intends that the adoption of this resolution will be a declaration of the City’s 

official intent to reimburse expenditures for these purchases that are to be financed from 
the proceeds of the SunTrust financing described above.  The City intends that funds that 
have been advanced, or that may be advanced, from the City’s General Fund, or any other 
City fund related to these purchases, may be reimbursed from the financing proceeds. 

 
6. All prior actions of City officers in furtherance of the purposes of this resolution are 

hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.  All other resolutions (or parts thereof) in 
conflict with this resolution are hereby repealed, to the extent of the conflict.  This 
resolution shall take effect immediately.  

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-47, upon motion of Council Member Daeke and second by Council 
Member Daye, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes 
and was APPROVED on this the 22nd day of September 2014:  YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke, Simmons, Daye, Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe. NO: None.   ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: 
None.  
 
 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
  
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
Michael E. Satterwhite, Acting City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, p 330; CAF 14-73 
 

 



CAF 14-115: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

6 October 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 14-115 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 14-84, Removing City Manager A. Ray 
Griffin, Jr. as Deputy City Clerk and as Signatory for the City of Henderson as Well 
as Relinquishing First Citizens Credit Card in Mr. Griffin’s Name 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Resolution 14-84, Removing City Manager A. Ray Griffin, Jr. as Deputy City 

Clerk and as Signatory for the City of Henderson as Well as Relinquishing First Citizens 
Credit Card in Mr. Griffin’s Name. 

 
Executive Summary: 
 
On 25 October 2010, City Manager A. Ray Griffin, Jr. and Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier 
were appointed Deputy City Clerks via Resolution 10-109. 
 
On 14 November 2011, they were authorized as signatories at the First Citizens Bank by 
Resolution 11-109 and on 12 December 2011, Finance Director Kathy C. Brafford was added as 
a signatory with Mr. Griffin and Mr. Frazier remaining as alternates via Resolution 11-124.  
 
It is now appropriate and necessary to remove Mr. Griffin as Deputy City Clerk, and as signatory 
for the City of Henderson at the First Citizens Bank, effective the end of business on 31 October 
2014.    
 
It is also appropriate and necessary to remove Mr. Griffin from the First Citizens Credit Card and 
add Finance Director Brafford as this credit card is used from time to time for employees to 
register for conferences and/or reservations for lodging during these events.  
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 14-84 
2. Resolution 10-109 
3. Resolution 11-109 
4. Resolution 11-124 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 27 October 14 Short Meeting 



CAF 14-115: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 5 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   14-84  
 

REMOVING CITY MANAGER A. RAY GRIFFIN, JR. AS DEPUTY 
CITY CLERK AND AS SIGNATORY FOR THE CITY OF 

HENDERSON  
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Charter, Section 21, provides for the City Council to appoint 

the City Clerk; and 
 
WHEREAS, on 25 October 2010 City Manager A. Ray Griffin, Jr. and Assistant City Manager 

Frank Frazier were appointed Deputy City Clerks via Resolution 10-109; and 
 
WHEREAS, on 14 November 2011, City Manager A. Ray Griffin, Jr. and Assistant City 

Manager Frank Frazier were appointed as signatories for the City of Henderson at the 
First Citizens Bank via Resolution 11-109; and  

 
WHEREAS, on 12 December 2011 Finance Director Kathy C. Brafford was added as a signatory 

with Mr. Griffin and Mr. Frazier remaining as alternates via Resolution 11-124; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to the retirement of City Manager A. Ray Griffin, Jr., it is now appropriate and 

necessary to remove Mr. Griffin as Deputy Clerk and as a signatory with First Citizens 
Bank as well as relinquish the First Citizens Credit Card currently in Mr. Griffin’s name 
and reissue in Finance Director Brafford’s name.  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Henderson City Council does hereby approve 

removing retiring City Manager A. Ray Griffin, Jr., as Deputy Clerk and as a signatory 
for the City of Henderson at the First Citizens Bank and revise the First Citizens Card 
removing Mr. Griffin’s name and adding Kathy Brafford as authorized user effective end 
of business on 31 October 2014  

 
The foregoing Resolution 14-84 was heard on this the 27th day of October 2014 and upon a 
motion by Council Member *** and seconded by Council Member *** and APPROVED by the 
following vote:  YES:  .  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None. 
           

       
      James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST:        
______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Legal Form: 
 
______________________________ 
D. Rix Edwards, City Attorney 
 
(Reference:  Minute Book 44 p***, CAF 14-115) 



CAF 14-115: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 5 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   10—109 
 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF 
CITY MANAGER A. RAY GRIFFIN JR., AND ASSISTANT CITY 

MANAGER FRANK FRAZIER AS DEPUTY CITY CLERKS 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Charter, Section 21, provides for the City Council to appoint 

the City Clerk; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is appropriate to provide for back-up to the Office of City Clerk in the event the 

City Clerk is absent from duty in order to provide for the timely execution of work. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Henderson City Council does hereby appoint 

City Manager A. Ray Griffin, Jr., and Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier to serve in 
the role of  Deputy City Clerk, at the pleasure of the City Council for an indefinite term, 
with said term of office to begin on Monday, 1 November 2010; and  

 
The foregoing Resolution 10-109 was heard on this the 25th day of October 2010 and upon a 
motion by Council Member Coffey and seconded by Council Member Peace-Jenkins and 
APPROVED by the following vote:  YES:  Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Davis, Daye 
and Coffey.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  Evans. 
           
 

__________________________ 
                            James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:        
 
______________________________ 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., Interim City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Legal Form: 
 
______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
(Reference:  Minute Book 41, pp. 691-692) 

 



CAF 14-115: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 5 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 11—109 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING  
THE MAYOR TO SIGN A CORPORATE RESOLUTION FOR FIRST CITIZENS BANK 

UPDATING SIGNATORY INFORMATION  
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 2011, and 
during said Retreat identified Strategic Objectives and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal 

Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and 
Mandates for Regulatory Authorities; and 

 
WHEREAS; due to the retirement of Finance Director Sandra Wilkerson, it is now necessary to 

update the corporate resolution by removing Ms. Wilkerson from the signatory card and 
appointing City Manager Ray Griffin, Jr. and Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier as 
the only authorized signatories having the authority to handle banking relationships 
between the City of Henderson and First Citizens Bank. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE, the Corporate Resolution more fully articulated in 
Attachment A; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to sign all agreements and 

documents necessary regarding this Corporate Resolution. 
 
The foregoing Resolution 11—109, upon motion of Council Member Rainey and second by 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the 
following votes and was Approved on this the 14th day of November 2011:  YES:  Peace-
Jenkins, Daeke, Daye, Coffey, Inscoe and Rainey.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.          
ABSENT: Davis and Kearney. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. 310.   



CAF 14-115: 27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 5 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 11—124 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING  
THE MAYOR TO SIGN A CORPORATE RESOLUTION FOR FIRST CITIZENS BANK 

UPDATING SIGNATORY INFORMATION  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 2011, and during said 
Retreat identified Strategic Objectives and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations 

and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates for 
Regulatory Authorities; and 

 
WHEREAS; due to the hiring of Katherine C. Brafford as the City’s new Finance Director, it is now 

necessary to update the Corporate Resolution by adding Ms. Brafford to the signatory card, 
effective 29 December 2011 with City Manager A. Ray Griffin, Jr. and Assistant City Manager 
Frank Frazier remaining as alternate signatories having the authority to handle banking 
relationships between the City of Henderson and First Citizens Bank. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY APPROVE and authorize Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director, A. Ray Griffin, Jr., 
City Manager, and Frank Frazier, Assistant City Manager to be signatories on the City’s accounts 
with First Citizens Bank, said authorities more fully articulated in the Corporate Resolution 
included herein and referenced as Attachment A; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to sign all agreements and documents 

necessary regarding this Corporate Resolution. 
 
The foregoing Resolution 11—124, upon motion of Council Member Daeke and second by Council 
Member Coffey and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
APPROVED on this the 12th day of December 2011: YES: Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, 
Peace-Jenkins and Daeke.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.          ABSENT: Davis.    
       _____________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. 227   
 
 
 
 

 



CAF 14-110:  27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

10 October 2014 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF 14-110 

Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the 
Month of September 2014.  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of tax releases and refunds from Vance County for the month of September 2014. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Vance County Tax office submitted the following tax releases and refunds to the Finance 
Department for the month of September 2014.  These releases and refunds are found to be in 
order and are being recommended for approval.  
 

Sept 2014 Tax Releases & Refunds
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property
Releases
Pettaway, Hattie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 22.14                    
Rowland, Deborah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2003 13.85                    
Pettaway, Hattie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 23.23                    
Ricks, Mary Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 36.86                    
Rowland, Deborah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2004 14.53                    
Pettaway, Hattie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 24.32                    
Ricks, Mary Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 38.59                    
Rowland, Deborah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2005 15.21                    
Pettaway, Hattie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 24.32                    
Ricks, Mary Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 38.59                    
Rowland, Deborah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2006 15.21                    

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252-430-5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  27 Oct. 14 Short Reg. Meeting 
 



CAF 14-110:  27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 

September 2014 Tax Release & Refunds Continued 
 

 
 

  

Pettaway, Hattie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 24.32                    
Ricks, Mary Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 38.59                    
Rowland, Deborah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2007 15.21                    
Pettaway, Hattie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 22.54                    
Richardson, Hattie M Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 107.29                  
Ricks, Mary Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 52.09                    
Rowland, Deborah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2008 24.30                    
Pettaway, Hattie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 23.34                    
Richardson, Hattie M Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 111.09                  
Ricks, Mary Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 53.94                    
Rowland, Deborah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2009 25.16                    
Matthews, Donald Personal Prop Billed in Error 2010 34.78                    
Pettaway, Hattie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 23.34                    
Richardson, Hattie M Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 111.09                  
Ricks, Mary Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 53.94                    
Rowland, Deborah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2010 25.16                    
Matthews, Donald Personal Prop Billed in Error 2011 34.78                    
Pettaway, Hattie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 23.36                    
Richardson, Hattie M Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 111.11                  
Ricks, Mary Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 53.91                    
Rowland, Deborah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2011 25.15                    
Matthews, Donald Personal Prop Billed in Error 2012 34.78                    
Pettaway, Hattie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 23.36                    
Richardson, Hattie M Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 111.11                  
Ricks, Mary Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 53.91                    
Rowland, Deborah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2012 25.15                    
Matthews, Donald Personal Prop Billed in Error 2013 36.86                    
Pettaway, Hattie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2013 24.76                    
Richardson, Hattie M Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2013 117.76                  

Richardson, Hattie M Heirs
City Weed Abatement Lien 
Lost to Foreclosure

2013 200.00                  

Ricks, Mary Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2013 57.14                    
Rowland, Deborah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2013 26.65                    
Sneed, Mary Personal Prop Billed in Error 2013 36.86                    
Cranz, John W Correct Ownership 2014 355.99                  
Fisher of Men Church Religious 2014 174.84                  
Galarza, Bulmaro Rodriguez Personal Prop Billed in Error 2014 31.21                    
Greene, Karen Correct Ownership 2014 (146.10)                
Inshore Properties, LLC Correct Ownership 2014 (1,127.90)             



CAF 14-110:  27 October 2014 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 

September 2014 Tax Release & Refunds Continued 
 

 
 

 
 

Julius, Thurston Barber Personal Prop Billed in Error 2014 6.17                      
McGregor, Minerva F Real Prop Billed in Error 2014 86.49                    
Moran Foods Inc Correct Ownership 2014 (2,727.67)             
Navarette, Jose Maurice Correct Ownership 2014 (36.86)                  
Navarro, Roberto Correct Ownership 2014 36.86                    
Parker, David E. Correct Ownership 2014 146.10                  
Pettaway, Hattie Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 24.76                    
Richardson, Arline A Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 (695.46)                
Richardson, Hattie M Heirs Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 117.76                  
Ricks, Mary Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 57.14                    
Rogers & Franklin Dev. Correct Ownership 2014 197.81                  
Rogers, John Clifton Correct Ownership 2014 930.09                  
Rowland, Deborah Taxes Lost to Foreclosure 2014 26.65                    
Tarheel Regional Community Charitable Organization 2014 196.55                  
Tharrington, Walter De Correct Ownership 2014 339.47                  
Vance Granville Comm. College Education  (Government) 2014 28.58                    

Total R&P Property Releases 32.16                    

Real & Personal Property
Refunds None reported 0.00
Total R& P  Property Refunds 0.00
Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Ref. 32.16$                  

Vechicle Releases
Harris, Lucille Harris Correct Situs 2011 34.45                    
Harris, Lucille Harris Correct Situs 2013 33.99                    
Henderson, Henry Pro-Rate 2013 0.61                      
Williams, Georgette Marie Transfer Out 2013 48.07                    

Total Vehicle Releases 117.12                  

Vehicle Refunds None reported -                       
Total Vehicle Refunds -                       
Tot. Veh. Rel. & Ref. 117.12                  

Total All Releases & Refunds 149.28                  



Meetings and Events Calendar 
All Regular City Council Meetings Held 2nd & 4th Monday at 6:00 P.M. 

Date Time Event Location 

Nov 3rd 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Nov 4th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Nov 10th 5:00 PM 
Perry Memorial Library  

Board of Trustees Meeting 
Perry Memorial Library 

Nov 10th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Nov 13th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission  Aycock Recreation Center

Nov 20th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Nov 24th 6:00 PM 
City Council Meeting 

Work Session to Follow City Council Chambers 

Nov 27th 

  & 
Nov 28th 

CITY HALL CLOSED 

 
 HAPPY THANKSGIVING 

 
CITY HALL  

CLOSED 

Dec 1st  3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Dec 2nd 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Dec 8th 9:30 AM KLRWS Advisory Board Meeting City Hall Large Conference 
Room 

Dec 8th  6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

Dec 11th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission  Aycock Recreation Center

Dec 18th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Dec 22nd Meeting Cancelled 
City Council Meeting 

CANCELLED DUE TO HOLIDAYS Meeting Cancelled 

Dec 24th CITY HALL CLOSED 

 FOR THE HOLIDAYS 

DEC 24TH THRU 26TH 

 
MERRY 

CHRISTMAS 
TO ALL 

CITY HALL CLOSED FOR  

THE HOLIDAYS 

DEC 24TH – 26TH 

Dec 25th 

Dec 26th  

Jan 1st  CITY HALL CLOSED HAPPY NEW YEAR!!!!! CITY HALL CLOSED 

Jan 5th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Jan 6th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustments City Council Chambers 

Jan 8th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Parks & Recreation 

Commission  Aycock Recreation Center

Last Updated 10 October 2014 
































	#32 SRM 27 October 2014
	Sept 22 Short
	Sept 22 Work Session
	Sep 25 Special
	Oct 14 2014 Special
	Oct 20 Recessed Special Called
	CAF 14-30-A  Governmental Sign Ordinance Revision O 14-18-A
	CAF 14-106 approval of quit claim deeds for County owned property R 14-77
	CAF 14-109  Authorizing HWRF Project  Change Order #5 . R 14-79, O14-49
	CAF 14-89 Authorizing Contract with Locklear, Locklear & Jacobs for Brownfileds Grant Application R 14-51
	CAF 14-111 I-85 ROW Agreement R 14-80
	CAF 14-73-A  Establishing Lease Purchase Budget O 14-25
	CAF 14-115 Removing Mr. Griffin as Clerk R 14-84
	CAF 14-110 Tax rel-ref Sept  2014
	Meetings and Event Calendar
	Aug 21 2014 thru Sept 20
	#9 September 2014 HFD Report

